






























































 

 
 

Meeting 
minutes  
 
  
Subject/Ref 
 

Tullow Phase 1 Jubilee Field Development EIA 
 

Venue 
 

Raybow Hotel, Takoradi 

Date of Meeting 
 

Tuesday 17 March 2009 

Present 
 

Tullow CSR, ESL, Chief Fishermen groups, media (see 
attached attendance list)  

Distribution 
 

To all 

Date 17 March 2009 

Environmental 
Resources 
Management 
 
Building 23 
2nd Floor 
The Woodlands Office Park 
Woodlands Drive 
Woodmead, 2148 
T: +27 11 8028263 
F: +27 11 8028299 
http://www.erm.com 
 

 
 

  
NOTES 
 

ACTION 

Emmanuel Appiah (EA) of Tullow CSR welcomed attendees and opened the 
meeting. Okyeame Ampadu (OA) of Tullow CSR outlined the purpose of the 
meeting and introduced the Tullow team. The Chief fishermen groups 
introduced themselves. 
 
Kofi Esson (KE) of Tullow gave a brief background to the oil find and ongoing 
development activities. He asked the Chief Fishermen groups to be partners in 
the Jubilee field developing. 
 
Alan Dowokpor (AD) of Tullow gave an extensive presentation on the Jubilee 
project to the Chief Fishermen groups. He outlined the processes involved 
during field discovery. He also presented the field development plan, 
production design and safety considerations in the oil production. 
 
Rex Quick (RQ) of Tullow presented on the background and need for the EIA. 
He outlined the EIA process in Ghana and the stage at which the process has 
reached as far as the Jubilee Phase 1 development is concerned. He introduced 
the EIA team as a highly capable local and international collaboration which is 
guaranteed to deliver on the EIA. He commented on the BID document and 
encouraged participants to complete as indicated and forward to addresses 
listed. He re-emphasized the importance of getting concerns across to the EIA 
team in a timely manner so as to have a successful development with minimal 
impacts on the environment and society. 
 
OA presented on the CSR intents of Tullow and outlined the major areas of focus 
for the CSR. He indicated that Tullow intends to be a good neighbour and asked 
for the cooperation of all in the development of the field. 
 
Other presenters include Andy Mokmon of Kosmos Energy and Kobina 
Amissah-Arthur of (KAA) GNPC. 
 
Issues raised by members of the Chief Fishermen groups were on the following:  

• Potential impacts of ballast water on fisheries in particular, and on 
marine life in general. 

 

 

 

 
 

Meeting 
minutes 

• User conflict between fishers and Tullow over area of field development. 
• Low number of Ghanaians working for Tullow or likely to work on oil 

facility. 
• Health of Ghanaian workers employed for unskilled work, particularly 

alcoholism among youth in area. 
• The real benefits that will inure to communities closest to oil field and the 

nation at large from the oil find. 
• No evidence that Cape Three Points, which bears similar name to the oil 

exploration block stands to gain any real benefit from find. 
• Potential risks that fishers may face as a result of the oil exploration and 

production activities. 
• Need to involve fishermen groups and other stakeholders in any CSR 

initiative that Tullow may bring up. 
• Need for adequate warning signals near FPSO and other production 

facilities to signal buffer zone to fishers in the area. 
• Chiefs to be involved in the handling of Assembly Common Funds and 

other funds that may accrue to their area as a result of oil find. 
• Need to be cautious of individuals purporting to employ people for 

Tullow and hence duping individuals out of their monies. 
 
Explanations to some of the concerns raised were provided by RQ, KE, OA, AD 
and the KAA. 
 
The chief fishermen groups (represented by their chairperson, Nana Kobina) 
thanked the Tullow team for the opportunity and indicated that they have a 
better understanding of issues related to the oil find. They also commented on 
the BID document and acknowledged its usefulness in summarizing the relevant 
issues relating to the Jubilee phase 1 project. They however recommended that 
the document be translated into several local languages in order to reach a wider 
readership. 
 
A total of 83 persons were present at the meeting. 
 
 
  
 













 



 

 
 

Meeting 
minutes  
 
  
Subject/Ref 
 

Tullow Phase 1 Jubilee Field Development EIA 
 

Venue 
 

Akroma Plaza, Takoradi 

Date of Meeting 
 

13th May 2009 

Present 
 

(attendance sheet attached)  

Distribution 
 

To attendees via email 

Date 14th May 2009 

Environmental 
Resources 
Management 
 
Building 23 
2nd Floor 
The Woodlands Office Park 
Woodlands Drive 
Woodmead, 2148 
T: +27 11 8028263 
F: +27 11 8028299 
http://www.erm.com 
 

 
 

  
NOTES ACTION 
The meeting commenced at 09:50 hrs after a short prayer. Emmanuel Appiah 
(EA) of Tullow introduced the program for the meeting. EA also led the 
introduction of the Tullow team and the participants. 
 
Kofi Essoun (KE) of Tullow gave a brief background to the oil find and ongoing 
development activities. He outlined the objective of the meeting and asked the 
NGOs invited to be partners in the development of the project. 
 
Alan Dowokpor (AD), Tullow Drilling Manager then gave an in-depth 
description on the geology, oceanography and engineering components of the 
oil exploration activities and gave an overview of the exploration and 
production process. 
 
Rex Quick (RQ) of Tullow gave a brief overview of the environmental and social 
impact assessment of the Jubilee Phase 1 Project. He indicated that the Tullow 
environment team has capable personnel that have a good understanding about 
the EIA process and the environmental issues related to the Jubilee field 
development. He stressed the importance of meeting with the NGOs as a key 
component of the EIA process and indicated his willingness to collaborate with 
the NGOs to minimise impacts from the project.  He also said the meeting will 
afford the opportunity for both parties to share information and concerns on the 
project. 
 
Emmanuel Arthur (EA) of Tullow Environment outlined the EIA process and 
permitting requirement in Ghana and informed participants about the current 
status of the EIA. 
 
Selorm Ababio (SDA) of ESL Consulting gave a brief introduction to the EIA 
team performing the EIA on behalf of Tullow. He said the EIA team was made 
up of an international partner, ERM and a local partner, ESL Consulting. He 
gave the strengths of both companies, indicating that ERM has extensive global 
experience in EIAs, with a significant proportion of their EIAs being in Oil and 
Gas. He also said that ESL Consulting has significant experience with EIAs in 
Ghana and also have excellent working knowledge of the oceanography of 
Ghana as well as socio-economic and cultural environment of coastal Ghana.  

 

 

 

 
 

Meeting 
minutes 

 
Okyeame Ampadu (OA) of Tullow CSR introduced the CSR component of the 
project and outlined the focus and direction of Tullow CSR. He identified the 
localities within the immediate sphere of influence of the Jubilee Field and 
mentioned projects that Tullow CSR had already commenced within these 
localities. He also indicated the willingness of Tullow CSR to work with NGOs 
in the region. 
 
The following issues and concerns raised by the NGOs during the general 
discussion: 
  

Donkriss Mevuta (DM) of WERENGO thanked the Tullow team for organizing the 
meeting and for inviting NGOs to attend. He however expressed his disappointment 
about the fact that the presentations excluded issues relating to good governance. He 
also indicated the importance of social impact assessment as a component of any EIA 
and said mitigatory measures will be more focused after the social impact 
assessment. 
 
OA explained that the current platform is focussed on the Jubilee Field EIA 
and is unable to effectively handle concerns relating to good governance. He 
said a subsequent forum would be held, where representatives of the 
government (i.e. GNPC) would handle questions on good governance. OA 
further said the EIA would contain a section on social impacts and that social 
impact assessment was being done as part of the EIA. 
 
Piet Schermerhorn of SNV said he was happy that eco-tourism development was on 
Tullow CSR agenda. He outlined the effect the current global economic crisis is 
having on fishery, rubber and timber industries, which he said provides employment 
in the Western Region, as well as foreign remittances from relatives abroad. He said 
cocoa may soon suffer from a virus moving eastwards from La Cote d’Ivoire, a 
situation which may affect livelihoods and that the only industry making any 
significant rise in performance is the tourism industry. He then sought to find out 
ways and opportunities for effective collaborations between Tullow CSR and NGOs 
for developing the tourism industry in the region.  
 
OA acknowledged the challenges facing communities in the Western Region, 
as outlined by the questioner and indicated the readiness of Tullow CSR to 
work with all established NGOs in tackling those challenges. He further said 
the presence of relevant NGOs such as SNV is indicators of the good work 
Tullow CSR intends to support in the region. 
 
Andrew de-Heer of ATWWAR enquired about the costs of the oil field development, 
estimated cost of production, size of the oil field and volumes that would be produced 
after development. He also wanted to know whether the volume of oil being produced 
will make Ghana a global player in the oil industry. 
 
AD said the Jubilee find was small in comparison to several world figures he 
mentioned (including Nigeria, Libya and Angola). He however said the find 
was significant considering the fact that Ghana initially had almost no oil 
production, but now can produce enough to be self-sufficient. He gave 
figures for barrels per day, cost of field development, cost of production and 
cost of maintaining production facilities (including the FPSO). 



 

 
 

Meeting 
minutes 

 
Richmond Ocloo of wanted to know the criteria Tullow CSR may use in identifying 
NGOs that it may work with in the region. He also wanted to know steps being 
taken to ensure the safety and security of the oil field exploration and production 
facilities. 
 
OA responded that Tullow CSR has criteria for determining active NGOs 
and NGOs whose line of action coincide with Tullow CSR. He mentioned 
that Tullow CSR does not intend to re-invent the wheel but will work with 
NGOs already in the field and augment their actions. He gave an example of 
an NGO working with river blindness and said Tullow CSR supplemented 
the NGO’s efforts by supplying it with additional drugs. 
 
KE said the security of the oil facilities and any other facility is primarily the 
responsibility of the Government. He indicated that plans are far advanced 
to equip relevant state institutions with adequate tools and knowledge to 
manage the safety and security of the installations. 
 
Gifty Asmah of DAASGIFT Quality Foundation enquired about plans for 
landuse/land management and asked whether Tullow is prompting DAs within the 
region to plan for developments within their districts. She also asked whether Tullow 
CSR, in promoting its community development programs and projects has 
performed any needs assessment to determine the need of the people. She also wanted 
to know Tullow's plans/program for women economic empowerment, waste 
management in the districts (and particularly wastes generated from oil exploration 
and production facilities and brought to shore), community education and awareness 
creation among fishers in the district. 
 
KE responded that Tullow does not have any mandate to manage landuse in 
any community in Ghana. Rather, landuse management is the preserve of 
the District and Municipal administrations. However, he indicated the 
willingness of Tullow to help in augmenting the efforts of any DA/MA in 
land-use planning.  KE further said Tullow will work with NGOs towards 
women economic empowerment. He also said that several meetings have 
been held with fishers on awareness creation and education, and the dangers 
of fishing close to any of the oil installations was make known to them. 
 
OK reiterated KEs point on town planning and land-use management, but 
said Tullow does prompt relevant authorities on effective landuse 
administration, particularly in respect of population increases as a result of 
the project. 
 
RQ said waste management was a national problem and required a national 
action towards management. He indicated the willingness of Tullow in 
helping to develop a national waste management program that would be 
beneficial to all. He however said that all wastes produced in Ghana become 
the property of the state and are disposed off in accordance with state 
legislation. He further said wastes produced by Tullow operations are 
handled by accredited companies, and that oily wastes are handled at the 
Aboadze thermal plant, which has a facility for handling oily waste. 
 
Ekua Ansah-Eshun of ATWAAR asked about the emergency response plan for the 

 

 
 

Meeting 
minutes 

rig. She also asked about the relationship between Tullow and its partners for the 
Jubilee field development. She wanted to know plans for downstream operations for 
the crude oil and Tullow's relations with downstream operators, if any. She also 
enquired about the oil production technology and asked why Tullow is using an 
FPSO and not an FDPSO. She indicated that the technologies being used will 
deprive people in the Western Region of needed jobs.  
 
AD responded that emergency response plans are being developed.  He 
indicated his willingness to make the plan available for scrutiny. He however 
said that an FPSO is about the best technology available for the production 
needs of the Jubilee Phase 1 development, and that alternative technologies 
were considered by experts prior to the recommendation of an FPSO. 
 
KE said that Tullow's mandate for the Jubilee Field was for exploration, 
development and production, and that Tullow had no plans for any 
downstream activity. KE then outlined the relations between Tullow and its 
partners in the Jubilee Field development. KE finally said that offshore oil 
production does not usually generate a lot of jobs and that the jobs are 
generally very technical and beyond the scope of most locals. 
 
Mark Essien of the Daily Guide enquired about gas flaring on the production 
facilities. 
 
AD responded that currently, plans are for associated gas to be re-injected 
into the wells to boost production. He said there may be minimal flaring of 
gas as a result of well testing and occasionally from emergency shutdown 
situations. 
 
Kyei Yamoah of FoN said the scoping report did not indicate any economic and 
livelihoods survey. He further said he expects Tullow to conduct an ESIA in line 
with international best practices, focussing on the social impacts of the project. He 
indicated that increases in maritime traffic will result in increases in ballast water 
disposal into our national waters with attendant problems and called for efficient 
management of ballast water from vessels. He finally wanted to know if Tullow will 
willingly be part of publish what you pay, i.e. will be willing to publish all payments 
to Government. 
 
KE said it was not proper under the existing laws of Ghana for corporate 
bodies to divulge corporate matters to third parties without due 
authorization. He however said that as soon as the freedom of information 
bill is passed and it is deemed appropriate, Tullow will be willing to make 
such information public. He said Tullow had nothing to hide and that it 
behoves all to hold governments accountable and responsible. 
 
OA said the terminology of EIA is Ghana is determined by legislation. He 
however said that Tullow is mindful of the social component of EIAs and has 
indicated this in the scoping report. He specifically mentioned sections 6 and 
7 of the terms of reference as having adequately covered social impacts. 
 
RQ responded to issues relating to ballast water and said that Tullow 
acknowledges issues relating to ballast water as being very important. He 
said Tullow will follow international best practices as outlined in 



 

 
 

Meeting 
minutes 

international conventions that Ghana is signatory to, in safeguarding the 
marine environment. He further said the EIA will give specifics on how 
ballast water is to be managed for the Jubilee Project. 
 
Eva Ankrah of WILDAF wanted to know Tullow’s position on gender balance and 
steps Tullow is taking to employ more women. 
 
KE indicated that Tullow was gender sensitive and that Tullow employs 
both sexes and not discriminatory in hiring. He however said that the main 
issue facing Tullow is paucity in competent Ghanaian staff for the technical 
aspects of exploration and production. He said that Tullow is helping in 
training a number of graduate engineers from KNUST in oil exploration and 
production. 
 
 
George Ferguson of the Foundation for the Physically Challenged enquired about 
Tullow CSR program for the physically challenged and asked what Tullow is doing 
for them. 
 
OA indicated the readiness and willingness of Tullow CSR to work with 
everyone, including the physically challenged. He said Tullow does not 
believe in singling out challenged people since such actions could borders on 
discrimination. He however indicated willingness to work with NGOs in 
improving the livelihoods of the physically challenged. 
 
Elvis Kuudaar of CARE International complemented the Tullow team for the 
excellence of their presentation and recommended active participation of Tullow in 
land-use planning in the DAs. He mentioned the potential for the hijacking of 
benefits accruing to locals by Government and other agencies and recommended the 
consideration of a structured engagement framework between Tullow and the 
potentially impacted communities so as to ensure that benefits from the project inure 
to the rightful people. He also said that the term alternative livelihoods may be 
misleading and recommended Tullow consider sustainable livelihoods. He also 
recommended a more structured engagement between Tullow and civil society in the 
Western Region, which he said would narrow the gap in information sharing. He 
finally wanted to know by which standards Tullow will like to be held accountable. 
 
KE again indicated the willingness of Tullow to work with DAs/MAs in 
land-use planning and zoning. He however said again that Tullow does not 
have the mandate to require any DA/MA to plan land-use. 
 
OA said specifically that the term ‘alternative livelihood’ does not exist in 
Tullow CSR policy since it is  misleading. He stressed that all Tullow CSR 
programs border on sustainable livelihoods and utilize a needs-based 
approach. He promised a solid engagement with NGOs and other civil 
society organizations in the development of localities. 

 
KE thanked the participants for honouring the invitation to attend the meeting 
and reiterated Tullow’s willingness to be a good neighbour and to work 
positively with all civil society groups in the region. 
 
 




